
MUNICIPAL LAND USE BOARD MINUTES 
BOROUGH OF EMERSON 

    March 9, 2017 
 

This meeting of the Emerson Land Use Board was held in the Municipal Building.  Chairman 
Schwinder opened the meeting at 8:06 PM.  In compliance with the Open Public Meeting Act, the 
Clerk has notified The Record and The Ridgewood News of this meeting and notice has been 
posted in the Municipal Building.  

 
Pledge of Allegiance 

Roll Call: 
 
Robert Adams     Present 
Thomas Callagee     Absent 
Michael DeOrio     Absent 
Gary Goursky     Present 
Louis Lamatina, Mayor     Present 
Evan Kutzin     Absent 
Steven Malone     Present 
Doug McKendry     Present 
Norman Rieger     Present 
Thomas Sudano     Present 
Gerry Falotico, Councilman     Present 
Gary Schwinder, Chairman       Present 
Christopher Martin, LUB Attorney     Absent 
Ryan Franco, LUB Attorney  sitting in for Mr. Martin  Present 
Gary Ascolese, MLUB Engineer     Not Requested 
Bridgette Bogart, Borough Planner     Present 
Michael Sartori, CCO/Zoning     Not Requested 
Perry Solimando, DPW Interim Super.    Not Requested 
Robert Hoffmann, Borough Admin.     Not Requested 
Marie Shust, Interim Secretary     Present 
 

After roll call was taken, Mr. Schwinder announced that the application for Rich’s Auto had been 
continued to the April 6th meeting.  
 
Mr. Schwinder then asked if there were any comments on the minutes of January 26th meeting, 
hearing none he asked for a motion to accept the minutes, which was made by Mr. Reiger, second 
by Mr. Goursky.  All present voted aye to accept.  The minutes were approved. 

 
Mr. Schwinder then asked if there was any correspondence, there was none 
 
Mr. Schwinder then asked for the vouchers received, which Ms. Shust read to the Board. 
 

 Vouchers 9-Mar-17   
     

2/14/2017 17-00258 Boswell 246 Kinderkamack Rd, Kuiken Bros  $    237.00  
2/22/2017 17-00297 Boswell 322 Kinderkamack, Starbuck's  $ 1,374.00  



2 
 

2/15/2017 17-00272 Boswell 322 Kinderkamack, Starbuck's  $    703.38  
2/7/2017 17-00217 Boswell 100 Kinderkamack, Emerson Conv.  $      79.00  
2/7/2017 17-00217 Boswell 38 First St,   $      39.50  
2/7/2017 17-00217 Boswell 246 Kinderkamack Rd, Kuiken Bros  $    592.50  
2/7/2017 17-00217 Boswell 21 Revere  Ave, Tripodi  $    434.50  

1/31/2017 17-00175 Morrison 90 Jefferson, Resolution  $    406.00  
1/30/2017 17-0165 Shust LUB meeting 1/26/17  $    150.00  
1/31/2017 17-00171 Boswell 26 Palisade Ave  $    158.00  
1/31/2017 17-00171 Boswell 15 Arthur St  $      39.50  
1/31/2017 17-00171 Boswell 147 Chestnut St  $      79.00  

3/7/2017 17-00363 Boswell 
205 Ackerman, 237 Northern Valley 
Developers, B507, L3  $      79.00  

2/27/2017 17-00313 Boswell 246 Kinderkamack Rd, Block 214,  Lot 1  $    158.00  
3/6/2017 17-00359 Boswell 524 Main St. Amer. Leg  304/3  $    152.00  
3/6/2017 17-00359 Boswell 524 Main St. Amer. Leg  304/3  $    304.00  

     
     $ 4,985.38  

 
Mr. Schwinder advised the Board that all except one of the above vouchers were covered by 
Escrow funds.  The voucher for Ms. Shust was an expense. 
 
Mr. Schwinder asked for a motion to approve the vouchers, which was given by Mr. Goursky, 
seconded by Mr. McKendry, all were in favor. 
 
Mr. Schwinder then asked Mr. Sudano to give the report on the Sign Sub-Committee’s work on 
updating the borough’s sign ordinance.  Mr. Sudano briefly stated that the Sub-Committee opted to 
scrap the entire previous ordinance and propose a completely new ordinance as the old one was 
limited and outdated.  He then turned the floor over to Ms. Brigette Bogart to explain the report. 
 
Ms. Bogart opened her presentation explaining that there were three parts to the proposal.  The 
narrative, a chart and a template of the signage proposals, which are similar to those implemented 
by Park Ridge, were distributed.  Mr. Bogart reviewed the narrative first.  She stated that currently 
there are two departments responsible for signage.  The new Ordinance would consolidate all 
signage under the responsibility of the Land Use Board. 
 
The narrative defines the different types of signs that are allowed and those that are not permitted.   
The sizes, shapes, lighting and materials, are all covered under the new Ordinance.  Content of the 
signs is not an area that can be considered by the Board as it would be a conflict of freedom of 
speech.  Ms. Bogart is to meet with Mr. Martin for wording of obscenity clause and hate clause.   
 
The addition of guidelines for projection signs, animated signage, lighted signs,  
A-frame/sandwich signs were inserted into the Ordinance. Timing limits for display of the signs was 
also addressed in the Ordinance. 



3 
 

 
Paper banners are prohibited, however, other banner materials are permitted.  Mr. Schwinder 
asked for research into various types of materials and which would withstand weather and those 
that would deteriorate and define all the materials that are not acceptable in the Ordinance.  The 
Ordinance also states that a banner can be up twice a year, but for no more than 90 days in total.   
Mr. Schwinder remarked that currently we allow 2 sixty-day periods, for a total of 120 days and 
asked Ms. Bogart to consider allowing businesses two, two-month periods to display their banner at 
peak periods like holidays or summer specials  
 
The Ordinance states that second floor businesses can display one sign in one of the windows, 
however, building signs are not permitted, as stated in the original code. Mr. Schwinder stated that 
the dance school over the locksmith does have an exterior building sign.  It was determined that 
that was in conflict with the codes.  Mr. Schwinder suggested that it might be appropriate to allow 
second story business to display projection signs, which would be visible to pedestrians as well as 
drivers. As a business owner, Mr. Schwinder feels that window signs are useless. 
 
Mr. Schwinder then referred to the A-frame/sandwich signs and the placement thereof.  He said the 
Ordinance should cover the distance the sign can be from the front of the business, or the business 
owners will place them at the street curb for best visibility.  He referred to the truck Jersey Mike’s 
put in the parking lot of the Stop and Shop Plaza.   Mr. Schwinder thought that truck sign might be a 
signal to other business to place signs along the curb.  
 
Mr. Goursky wanted to know the timing for removal of the A-frame signs and was told it was at the 
close of the business day for each business.   Mr. Goursky thought a standard time would better fit 
the streetscape of the Master Plan. 
 
Older signs would be grandfathered as long as they were not offensive, or weatherworn/damaged.  
When replacements are required, the new signs would have to conform to the Ordinance. New 
businesses could not be grandfathered for any signs left by former businesses.  Their signs would 
have to conform to the new Ordinance. 
 
Ms. Bogart then reviewed the chart, which broke down the types of signs and the 
definition/regulation for each type, and the diagram which displayed the various types of signs. 
 
Mr. Bogart then asked the Board to review the materials before the next meeting and address any 
comments, suggestions or questions to her, Mr. Sudano, Mr. Reiger or Mr. McKendry, and not to 
the entire Board. 
 
Mr. Schwinder requested that Mr. Sartori and Mr. Fullam be sent the materials and asked that they 
be asked to be present at the next meeting for their input/comments. 
 
Mr. Schwinder then asked about the size of pylon signs.  Ms. Bogart replied 18 sq. ft. 
 
Mr. Schwinder then thanked the committee for their research, compilation and presentation.  Ms. 
Shust requested that Ms. Bogart email her all the information to enable her to forward it to the 
absent Board Members, Mr. Fullam and Mr. Sartori.  
 
Mr. Schwinder suggested that the Board members drive through Park Ridge, on which the 
presentation is based, to analyze the design and presentation.  He also mentioned that he would 
like to have a Sign Review Board appointed, and wondered if any neighboring town had one set up.   



4 
 

He asked the Sign Committee to investigate who has this committee, what their function is and how 
effective it was. 
 
Mr. Schwinder then asked for a motion to open the floor to the public, which was made by Mr. 
Goursky, second by Mr. Folatico.  All were in favor.  Seeing no hands from the public, Mr. 
Schwinder asked for a motion to close the floor, which was made by Mayor Lamatina and second 
by Mr. Adams.  All were in favor. 
 
Mr. Schwinder asked if there was any other business to discuss and the Mayor replied that he 
would like a volunteer to act as Liasion between the Boards and the Historic Committee.  Mr. Mc 
Kendry volunteered for the appointment. 
 
Mr. Schwinder then asked the Mayor for an update on the redevelopment.  Mayor Lamatina replied 
that the Borough was being sued by the owners of the building formerly known as Ranchero 
Cantina, soon to be Cinar.    The Mayor also commented that there were several blocks and lots 
under consideration to be removed from the redevelopment area.  He stated that lots on Lincoln 
Blvd and Kinderkamack Rd, as well as blocks south of the Emerson Hotel remain in the Master 
Plan redevelopment. 
 
Mr. Schwinder then asked if there was any Good and Welfare to discuss or any other Board 
business, hearing none, he asked for a motion to close the floor, which was made by Mayor 
Lamatina, second by Mr. Goursky, all were in favor. 

 
The meeting was adjourned at 9:08 pm.  
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 

Marie Shust 
Interim Board Secretary 


